



Bawley Point & Kioloa Community Association Inc.
General Meeting – 7.30pm on 17th June 2013
Kioloa Community Centre

MINUTES

MEETING OPENED: 7.45pm

MEETING CLOSED: 8.45pm

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Mariah Beckett, Renee Andersen, Claire Stephenson, Cettina Borg-Musin, Graham Lester and Roger Lucas.

APOLOGIES: Sharon Adlam, Rob Jansma, Carrie Smith, Amanda Findley, Sybille & Don Davidson, Robert Sutherland, Robyn Murphy and John & Helen Nelson.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ATTENDEES: 15

COUNCILLOR IN ATTENDANCE: Allan Baptist.

MINUTES OF LAST GENERAL MEETING: Attachment A

Accepted: Cettina Borg-Musin

Seconded: Renee Andersen

PRESIDENTS REPORT: Attachment B

Accepted: Claire Stephenson

Seconded: Roger Lucas

TREASURERS REPORT: Attachment C

Accepted: Roger Lucas

Seconded: Graham Lester

CORRESPONDANCE: Attachment D

Accepted: Judith Carroll

Seconded: Cettina Borg-Musin

Business arising from correspondence:

1. Shoalhaven Medal Nominations

GENERAL & NEW BUSINESS:

1. Pathway and Insurance update

- Insurance has finally been sorted although as of last Wednesday we were still waiting for confirmation in writing from Council that individuals were not responsible for the \$2,500 excess payable on the Public Liability policy. Individuals are now covered for death and major injury up to a maximum of \$50,000.
- We have had to request that SCC inspect the portion of the pathway completed to date and give us written acceptance.
- Work has commenced on the next section of the pathway, it has been excavated and formed up. The concrete pour was to take place either Friday or Saturday of last week.

2. 'Virtual' Men's Shed update

- Tuesday morning coffee/tea /discussion sessions 9.00 till midday at the Bawley Point Fire Shed are growing in popularity.

- Camp Oven Cookout Fundraiser. This will be on Tuesday 23 July at the Bawley Point reserve at 5.00pm for 6:30pm dinner. Tickets \$45.00 each, this includes entry in the Lucky Door/Tree prizes. A maximum number of 50 is being catered for. Tickets must be paid for at the time of booking.
- Day trip tour of Shoalhaven CC Waste Management Facilities on Thursday 18 July. This follows on from the April Monthly Talk.
- The Murramarang Men's Shed first Annual General Meeting will be held on Wednesday 17th July at 7.00pm at the Bawley Fire Station.
- Concept Plans have gone to council. These were shown at the meeting.

3. Planning – LEP

- Submission on behalf of the Bawley Point & Kioloa communities lodged by the CA. Details can be found on our website under 'Community Information', follow links to SCC page.
- Council holding Special Development Committee meetings in July to discuss submissions with CCB's and interested stakeholders.

4. Rabbits & Foxes – Pindone requirements

- Following attendance at the Pindone course run by LHPA it was brought to our attention that protocols required when dealing with the laying of the Pindone oats on behalf of Council were not being carried out. We have requested information from Greg Thompson at council and are awaiting his response. As a consequence very little activity regarding laying Pindone oats has occurred since.

5. Community Notice Board

- We would like the community to give us ideas and feedback on what you would like to see on this noticeboard and to that end we have produced a questionnaire which was published in the latest Sport & Rec newsletter and is also available on the CA website.
- Without community input the final design of the noticeboard may not be what is needed by this community – please have your say.
- All responses to the questionnaire will be taken into account when final design implemented.

6. Recycling Issues

- Currently the Kioloa Recycling Depot can take free of charge the following items; Used engine oil, Car Batteries, Power packs, Paper, Cardboard, Polystyrene, Tin, Aluminium, Scrap Metal, Light globes both energy saving and the older style globes, Mobile phones and smaller batteries.
- Kioloa Recycling Depot for a surcharge will take the following; Computers (including tower, keyboards etc), Old televisions, Gas bottles both large and small.
- Kioloa Recycling Depot does not have a plastic bag disposal unit at this stage.
- They also cannot collect any chemicals, paints or fire extinguishers or asbestos.
- An E Waste Muster would have to be followed up with Council if we were to have one here.
- They do have a chemical collection once per year at the Ulladulla Waste Depot
- Discussion followed green waste. The current arrangements have residents paying to take green waste to the tip where it is turned into mulch. Mulch is often free to collect. Possibly as a result there is a lot of weedy green waste being dumped on council and crown land. Local Landcare groups spend much time trying to deal with this. Suggestion that taking green waste to the tip should be a free service, residents could then buy mulch. Judith Carroll to draft a letter to the CA about this issue.

7. Stormwater Investigation

- Stormwater issue motion put at Councils Ordinary Meeting 23rd April 2013, awaiting update on investigation
- Excerpt from SCC Minutes:- *Item 436. Stormwater Issue Mitigation at Bawley Point File 1850E MOTION: Moved: Baptist / Second: White. That Council investigate the remediation of stormwater flow restriction*

issues east of the culvert at 37 Malibu Rd and east of the culvert at the southern entrance of Voyager Crescent, Bawley Point and report back viable options to the community in a timely fashion.

CARRIED

8. Shoalhaven Medal Nominations

- Correspondence received 21 May 2013 from Mayor Gash asking for nominations for the Shoalhaven Medal. Included were Nomination Forms. This letter and Nomination Forms are available on the website on the 'Community News' page.
- Nominations are sort for individuals who you consider have made an outstanding contribution to the local community or excellence in their field of endeavour. This may include the length or quality of the service, individual acts of compassion, generosity, bravery, ingenuity or creativity.

9. AGM & Committee

- AGM to be held on the 19th August 2013.
- Need members of the community to put their hand up for vacant positions on the committee, including President. Mariah has already held this position for the past three years, more than the period of two years as recommended by SCC.
- The association will collapse if there are not enough members to form a committee.
- If association folds there will be no group to represent this community to council, no more projects such as the community noticeboard and the website and electronic newsletter will cease to be produced.

10. Local Medical Services

- Members of the community voiced their concern that the local General Practitioner is reducing their hours and wondered if there was a possible solution.

The next General Meeting will be held immediately after the Annual General Meeting at 7.30pm on the 19th August 2013 at the Kioloa Community Centre

Attachment A



Bawley Point & Kioloa Community Association Inc. General Meeting – 15th April 2013 Kioloa Community Centre

MINUTES

MEETING OPENED AT: 7:40pm

MEETING CLOSED AT: 9:05pm

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT: Mariah Beckett, Sharon Adlam, Claire Stephenson, Cettina Borg-Musin, John Nelson, Robert Jansma, Graham Lester and Roger Lucas.

APOLOGIES: Renee Andersen, Steve Berkhout, Neil Brown, Maggie Mance.

TOTAL NUMBER OF ATTENDEES: 39

MINUTES OF LAST GENERAL MEETING: Attachment A

Accepted: Roger Lucas

Seconded: Carrie Smith

PRESIDENTS REPORT: Attachment B

Peter White noted that there was no mention of the Fish Cleaning Tables in the previous General Meeting minutes. This was a clerical error in the current Presidents Report. It should have read that the Fish Cleaning Tables item was from the November 2012 meeting. The attached Presidents Report has been amended to reflect this.

Accepted: Rae Riley

Seconded: Barbara Oom

TREASURERS REPORT: Attachment C

Accepted: Carrie Smith

Seconded: Judith Carroll

CORRESPONDANCE: Attachment D

Accepted: Claire Stephenson

Seconded: Rob Jansma

Business arising from correspondence:

1. Together Brings Strength
2. Community Strategic Plan
3. LEP 2013
4. Pindone/1080 Course
5. Fish Cleaning Tables
6. Community Notice Board
7. Stormwater

SPECIAL ITEM:

TBS Sign (Together Brings Strength) on the Bawley Point entrance sign.

- Allan Baptist introduced the item giving some background to the original sign.

- Michael Skwarko then spoke about the history behind the words, including that they originally came from the council signage which stated that Bawley Point meant 'The Brown Snake' in the aboriginal language. This was converted to Team Brown Snake when this group of lads were very young and as they matured it became and has remained Together Brings Strength.
- The community was asked to comment on the placement of the words 'Together Brings Strength' (TBS) on the sandstone base of the Bawley Point entry sign.
- TBS has been part of the 'Bawley/Kioloa' culture for many years now and was initially developed by the youth of our village. The letters TBS were placed on posts, trees ... and even used as tattoos by several in our community.
- For many it serves as a public reminder of the importance and need of gathering together and utilising community support in order to build strength both as individuals and as a community.
- The meeting was presented with a petition of 186 names supporting the installation of the words on the Bawley Point entrance sign.
- Also tabled were letters from Council giving in principle support providing endorsement came from the Community Assn. as well as letters of support from the Kioloa Bawley Management Committee and the Sport & Rec Club. (These items are available from the Correspondence Register)

After some discussion the following motion was put:-

That the Community Association and the community itself warmly endorse the concept of the Together Brings Strength sign being installed on the sandstone plinth of the Bawley Point entrance sign and that the Community Association write in support of this to council through Councillor Allan Baptist.

Accepted: John Nelson

Seconded: Cec Skwarko

The motion was unanimous

GENERAL BUSINESS:

1. 'Virtual' Men's Shed update

- The next monthly meeting is to be held on Wednesday 17th April at 7pm at the old Bawley Point Fire shed.
- A talk by Fiona Scheurs, the Waste Minimisation Officer from the Shoalhaven City Council, as a prelude to a Mystery Bus Tour. Contact Keith on 02 4457 1842 for more information.
- The raffle and popular 90 Club will be running on the night. Teas, coffee and cake will be available.
- The Tuesday morning coffee/tea /discussion sessions 9.00 till midday at the Bawley Point Fire Shed are growing in popularity.
- The men's shed have volunteered to assist with the completion of the shared pathway in Kioloa however the issue of volunteer insurance is creating confusion as it is not confirmed whether volunteers have personal injury cover with councils existing insurance policies.
- Pathway co-ordinator Graham Cooper addressed the meeting stating that he is communicating with the council pathways contact Marc Poulton who had stated that personal injury insurance was being sought through QBE.
- Graham is having an onsite meeting with Marc Poulton on Wednesday 17th and hopefully insurance details will be addressed. Graham is to keep Assn. committee abreast of insurance information.

- Councillor Allan Baptist addressed the meeting and stated that he would follow up the insurance issue and report back to the Assn. promptly.

2. Planning - Community Strategic Plan

- The Community Strategic Plan (CSP) outlines the community's long term (10+ years) vision, values, aspirations and priorities, with reference to other local government plans, information and resourcing capabilities. The CSP is not static and must be reviewed regularly, in our case every 4 years with the change of council.
- The CSP ideally should establish the community's vision for the local government's future, including aspirations and service expectations. It drives the development of local government plans, resourcing and other informing strategies, e.g. Workforce, Asset Management and Services.
- As part of Stg2 of the CSP review the association was asked by council to lodge a submission concerning three aspects of the CSP, they are Structure, Objectives and Strategies. This submission can be seen on our website, follow the links from the 'Community News' page.

Planning – Local Environmental Plan

- Local Environmental Plans (LEP's) guide planning decisions for local government areas. Through zoning and development controls, they allow councils to manage the ways in which land is used. LEPs are the primary planning tool to shape the future of communities and also oversee local development that is determined each year.
- An LEP is a legal instrument that imposes standards to control development. LEPs are also used to reserve land for open space, schools, transport or other public purposes as well as control advertising and protect trees and vegetation. The purpose of a LEP is to achieve the objects of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act (1979 NSW). They are a means to implement strategies. A LEP generally comprises a written document and accompanying maps.
- The draft LEP is now on re-exhibition until Friday 10 May 2013. This is the community's opportunity to view and comment on the changes that were made following the initial exhibition in 2011. A link to these documents can be found on the associations website, follow the links from the 'Community News' page
- The specific details of Johns report to the meeting are available on the Associations website, follow the links from the 'Community News' page.
- The meeting acknowledged and thanked John Nelson for the amount of work involved in putting together submissions on behalf of the Assn. concerning planning issues to both the council and the NSW government.

3. Rabbits & Foxes

- Pest and Livestock Authority are running a Pindone/1080 chemical induction and training course in Milton at 10.30am Wednesday 6th May at the CWA Hall in Wasson St.
- The cost is \$44 and must be paid in advance to book your place for the 3-4 hour course. Council will reimburse the cost of the course to all registered volunteers.
- Booking details are on the associations website, follow the link to the 'Community News' page.

4. Fish Cleaning Tables

- We may be able to get approval for the construction of fish cleaning tables at both Bawley boat ramp and Kioloa boat ramp however community support is needed.
- Recent fish cleaning and shelter projects provided to communities in the Shoalhaven were funded 25% by Council, 25% by the Community and 50% by the Recreation Fishing Trust.

- They cost in the vicinity of \$20,000 to \$25,000 each. Projects may be built by the community using “in kind labour” as the 25% community contribution. The 'virtual' Murramarang Men's Shed has offered to help, however we will need local tradies to assist.
- Meeting with council representatives arranged for the 17th April at Bawley boat ramp at 2pm before moving onto the Kioloa boat ramp - please come and bring along as many fishermen and fisherwomen that you know - the more support shown for this project the more likely council will put their hands into their pockets and provide the 25% we need from them.

5. Community Notice Board

- The Bawley Point & Kioloa Community Association is pleased to announce that we have finally gained approval from Shoalhaven City Council to use the back of the bus shelter at the corner of Forster Drive and Murramarang Road as a Community Noticeboard.
- We are hoping that the Murramarang Men's Shed will be able to construct and erect the notice board within council's guidelines. There is a possibility that we will also need to lay some type of hard surface around the existing concrete pad to ensure that people can easily walk around the rear of the bus shelter. Ideas on this would be helpful.
- We may well need to do a bit of fundraising to cover the cost of the materials required, so any ideas on how we might proceed with this would also be greatly appreciated.
- We would like the community to give us ideas and feedback on what you would like to see on this noticeboard and to that end we have produced a draft of some of the things that we think might be needed.
- Feedback is able to be given via the associations website, follow the link from the 'community news' page.

6. Stormwater Meeting

- A Public Meeting held last Monday the 8th April, with five council representatives, Councillor Allan Baptist and 39 members of the community in attendance, discussed stormwater and flooding issues within our area.
- Allan facilitated an at times very lively meeting which culminated in agreement being reached that the following Motion be put by Councillor Allan Baptist at the next Ordinary Council Meeting to be held later this month.

Motion: Stormwater Issue Mitigation at Bawley Point.

Recommendation

Council investigate the remediation of stormwater flow restriction issues east of the culvert at 37 Malibu Dr and east of the culvert at the southern entrance of Voyager Crescent, Bawley Point and report back viable options to the community in a timely fashion.

Background

The community of Bawley Point / Kioloa through its CCB, The Bawley Point Kioloa Community Association, called a public meeting 8th April 2013 with Council staff to discuss stormwater issues in the village and to propose a way forward for mitigation of two identified drainage problems.

Following heavy rain, flooding occurs at the southern entry to Voyager Cres (near the Shopping Centre). Currently drainage is slowed down on the western side of Murramarang Rd where the culvert disperses onto private property. Water also stays in the drains for some weeks after rain.

Likewise, following heavy rain, the extent of storm water and run off from several properties in the catchment of the wetland behind 37 Malibu, creates large volumes of water flow which is not able to escape to the back of the dunes of Gannet Beach due to plant build up in the drainage path of the reserve on the eastern side of the road and pipe headwall.

This causes a backup of stagnant water and is potential mosquito breeding which lasts for several weeks on the property of 37 Malibu and affects a number of residents in the immediate vicinity.

There is a variety of opinion on how the problem should be dealt with amongst the residents, including some who suggest nothing should be done.

The investigation needs to propose options that take into account the environmental sensitivity of the area and discussions with the private landholder near Voyager Cres and 37 Malibu Drive to identify viable actions that will relieve the drainage problems and mitigate flooding impacts following heavy rain.

Allan Baptist OAM
8th April 2013

The next General Meeting will be held on the 17th June 2013 at 7.30pm at the Kioloa Community Centre

President's Report

Fish Cleaning Tables – meeting onsite at both Bawley Point & Kioloa with Michael Strachan, Acting Infrastructure Planning Manager. In attendance were Mariah Beckett, Claire Stephenson, Leon Bower, Col Mason, Marg Hamon, Barbara Oom and Peter White. Agreement from all that fish cleaning table at Bawley is unachievable. Table at Kioloa is on Crown Land and therefore not under care or control of council. Council could apply for funding to improve facilities however cost and aesthetics make it unviable. BPKCA may consider low cost options to repair existing table at Kioloa. Maintenance of O'Hara Head walking tracks was discussed. Subsequent email (19th April) stated that funding for this will be considered next financial year.

Speed Limit decrease on the Bawley Road – email rec'd from NSW Transport that after consideration of our request the speed limit will remain as is.

Response from council re Dog Survey instrument – email rec'd 6th May from Policy Planning Manager – explaining that they were happy with the questionnaire, however he did state that 'should Council seek to make changes to the Policy following consideration of the comments from the questionnaire, those changes would be advised to the community and further comments would be sought.'

As a result of us following up of earlier correspondence Bollards have finally been put in place by council to stop the unauthorised vehicular access across the pathway just south of Rosemary Ave on Friday 31st May following our request in March 2012. As pathway has been marked with fluro paint, Sharon emailed on Friday 31st May to enquire as to whether they also plan on repairing pathway also asked about other vehicle access point north of Malibu although suggested here that revegetation might be the answer.

Use of the old Bawley Fire shed for meetings – Paul Dorahy, Planning Resources & Property Manager responded to our letter on 29th May stating that preliminary investigation of our query has found that a number of issues may have caused the response we received regarding the use of the Old RFS Station at Bawley Point including Council's policy "Community Use of Rural Fire Stations". He has forwarded our query to Council's City Services & Operations group to respond. I have received verbal advice that we will not be able to keep using the Fire Shed and that other groups will also have to use the hall. However Council is unable to help us with where to go if the fire shed is empty and the hall is fully booked out. It does seem odd that we have to pay to do councils work e.g. to meet with council staff to discuss a council matter vis-à-vis drainage.

BBQ Table & cover for Bawley Beach Reserve – email from council stating that supplier dispatching 31/5, installation to commence 2nd-3rd week June. Email rec'd 3rd June from SCC stating job to be completed by week end 17th June.

Email from A Baptist re volunteer insurance – path workers now covered by workers comp, Graham Cooper is the most informed about this and hopefully is at this meeting. There has been some more work on the pathway.

Email sent to Greg Thompson re Pindone Protocols not being carried out by council, after attendance at Pindone course – follow up email sent on the 23rd May – Whilst we want to see the end of the rabbits, as volunteers doing work on behalf of Council we would like assurance that we have some protection in case something goes wrong.

Kioloa Noticeboard – maintenance request sent and follow up to be done before next meeting.

Community Noticeboard – a questionnaire has been placed in the June Sport & Rec Newsletter & on website. Responses will be used to decide on layout of noticeboard. We have received some responses and hopefully we can finalise the design with the men's shed soon.

Emailed council on 29th May to find out what's happening with mowing of grass at Bawley bus stop. Council stated that mowing will begin in August and the area is scheduled to be mowed 10 times per year.

Email rec'd from Allan Baptist on the 7th May stating that the Stormwater Issue Motion raised at the public meeting was presented and passed on Tuesday 30th April at Council's Ordinary Meeting and that the Investigation requested will now begin.

Renee has spoken with some of the residents of Voyager concerning IGA trucks using Voyager. Residents are fine with the occasional IGA delivery truck however are more concerned about the trucks on Forster Drive.

Claire followed up with Cameron Lowe at council re community gems – Kay Murray replaces Cameron, and she has stated that there is just no money, but that we should contact her again in the new financial year.

Community Engagement – requirement by council from CCB Workshop – possible event that we could follow up would be a Family Day, we should also look at taking events such as youth week etc on board and cater to these things at our GM's by utilising relevant guest speakers and the like.

The AGM is our next meeting in August. I will be standing down as President. I have thoroughly enjoyed my stint and now it is time for somebody else to get stuck in. I believe other committee members are also vacating so there are genuine vacancies. PLEASE, if you believe in this community and want it to thrive, think about volunteering for a position on the committee.

Mariah Beckett

Treasurer's Report

Financial Statement June 2013

B/F from April 2013 Treasurers Report	\$2333.43
INCOME	
M'Ship	\$ 10.00
Interest	\$ 0.80
Donation	<u>\$ 10.00</u>
TOTAL Income	\$ 20.80
EXPENDITURE	
KCC hall rental. Storm water meeting (8/4/13)	\$12.00
O/S Secretary financial contribution (N Rogan 2011-2012)	<u>\$50.00</u>
TOTAL Expenditure	\$62.00
Funds b/f April 2013	\$2333.43
Plus Income	\$ 20.80
Less Expenditure	<u>\$ 62.00</u>
Total funds of BPKCA (01.06.2013)	\$2292.23
In Petty Cash	\$ 92.30
In Westpac Account (Statement No.1)	\$2199.93






























Correspondence Log

15 April – 17 June 2013






























Documents library




























20130415 - 20130617

Name

-  20130402 fr SCC re LEP meeting
-  20130412 NSW govt funds for reserves on...
-  20130416 A Baptist re TBS sign
-  20130416 letter from SCC KBPMC KBPSR...
-  20130416 letter to SCC endorsing TBS
-  20130416 letter to A Baptist & SCC in sup...
-  20130417 BPKCA newsletter re LEP
-  20130417 SCC rabbit volunteers
-  20130418 fr SCC agenda SLEP meeting
-  20130418 fr SCC re LEP meet 30 04 2013
-  20130418 J Dunn re guest speaker
-  20130418 to SCC Minutes BPKCA meeting
-  20130419 to M Hamon re LEP
-  20130423 G Thompson re calici virus rele...
-  20130424 G Thompson re poison carrots
-  20130424 M Strachan re fish tables
-  20130429 RSVP LEP workshop
-  20130430 fr Motor Reg re Kiama office
-  20130430 fr RTA re speed limit Bawley Ra...
-  20130430 SCC response re speed limit Ba...
-  20130501 Callala Beach re vol insurance
-  20130501 comm meet re LEP
-  20130501 fr A Baptist re old fire shed
-  20130501 HWCV re vol insurance
-  20130501 J Dunn re guest speaker
-  20130501 M Haron re Kioloa noticeboard
-  20130501 SCC re clarification of vol insur...
-  20130501 SCC re vol insurance
-  20130501 to all CCB's re vol insurance & ...

Name

-  20130501 to G Thompson SCC re vol insu...
-  20130501 to SCC Baptist & Findley re old ...
-  20130502 committee & A Baptist re LEP
-  20130502 Currorong PA re Vol Insurance
-  20130502 to G Roberts SCC re Kioloa noti...
-  20130503 Msg A Lesslie to S Adlam - LEP
-  20130504 FB msg A Lesslie & S Adlam - L...
-  20130505 S Murphy re LEP
-  20130506 LEP info for A Lesslie, A Baptist
-  20130507 fr A Baptist re TBS & Stormwater
-  20130507 fr SCC re DCP82 Signage
-  20130507 fr SLEP Review re LEP submission
-  20130507 M Hamon acknowledging noti...
-  20130507 MMS note for website
-  20130507 MMS update for website
-  20130507 SLEP Review presentation
-  20130507 SLEP2013 Final Submission
-  20130508 S&R June newsletter insert
-  20130508 S&R newsletter insert AGM 201...
-  20130508 S&R newsletter insert June & A...
-  20130509 BPKCA Newsletter
-  20130509 Cover letter for LEP submission
-  20130509 J Stanwix & G Thompson LHPA...
-  20130509 J Stanwix re Pindone
-  20130509 LHPA Information on using Pin...
-  20130509 Missing bush rock poster
-  20130509 Notice re stolen rocks @ Willinga
-  20130510 HWCV Newsletter
-  20130511 to A Baptist, A Finday & comm...

-  20130512 SCC response re Dog Survey ins...
-  20130522 - CSP2013 Phase 2 Engagement...
-  20130522 CSP2013 text only copy
-  20130522 fr SCC re CSP2013
-  20130523 A Baptist re bollards
-  20130523 A Baptist re vol insurance
-  20130523 J Dunn re guest speaker
-  20130523 SCC re bollards
-  20130523 to A Findley re invite to June GM
-  20130523 to SCC re meeting dates
-  20130524 to & fr SCC re BBQ cover
-  20130529 re Old Fire Shed
-  20130529 re Playgroup
-  20130531 to & fr SCC re Bollards
-  20130603 fr SCC re BBQ Table
-  20130604 SLEP Dev Com Meet
-  20130606 to & fr Patricia White re Bus Stop
-  20130611 fr SCC re DCP 100
-  20130611 to & fr Patricia White re bus stop
-  20130611 to & fr SCC re mow Bawley Bus...
-  20130612 BPKCA May Newsletter
-  20130612 fr SCC re Pindone protocols
-  20130612 HWCV Newsletter
-  20130613 fr SCC re old fire shed
-  20130613 to & fr SCC re Old Fire Shed
-  20130614 fr SCC re SLEP meet to consider...
-  20130614 to A Baptist re stormwater inve...